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TORTURE VICTIM PROTECTION ACT

Families settle with Malaysia Air over  
downed jet, focus on Ukrainian rebel 
By Melissa J. Sachs, Esq., Senior Legal Writer, Westlaw Journals

A Ukrainian rebel leader who allegedly ordered his followers to shoot down a Malaysia 
Airlines plane with a missile in 2014 is now the only defendant in an $800 million 
lawsuit filed by some crash victims’ families.

EMPLOYMENT 

United Airlines must face injured worker’s  
discrimination claims
By Tricia Gorman, Managing Editor, Westlaw Journals

A San Francisco federal judge has denied United Airlines’ attempt to dismiss an  
employee’s claims that it forced him to remain on disability by refusing to  
accommodate his limitations or consider him for another position.

REUTERS/Michael Kooren

The reconstructed wreckage of the Malaysian Airlines Flight 17 airplane 
is seen after the presentation of the Dutch Safety Board’s final report 
into the July 2014 crash. The plane was shot down over Ukraine by a 
missile but the report did not specify who launched the missile.

Dalziel et al. v. Girkin, No. 15-cv-6202, amended 
complaint filed (N.D. Ill., E. Div. Feb. 18, 2016).

The plaintiffs dropped their claims against the 
airline Feb. 12, according to documents filed in 
the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of 
Illinois.

“We dismissed Malaysia Air as part of confidential 
settlement discussions with its insurers,” said the 
families’ attorney, Floyd A. Wisner of the Wisner 
Law Firm.

Flight 17 was hit with a surface-to-air missile over 
Ukraine on July 17, 2014, killing all 298 people 

Gutierrez v. United Airlines Inc. et al., No. 14-cv-
5355, 2016 WL 612937 (N.D. Cal. Feb. 16, 2016).

There are issues of fact in dispute related to the 
suit’s six claims, including disability discrimination, 
failure to accommodate and retaliation, according 

to U.S. District Judge Joseph C. Spero of the 
Northern District of California.

The judge denied the airline’s motion for summary 
judgment on the claims, but rejected employee 
Nelson Gutierrez’s request for punitive damages.
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EMPLOYMENT

Judge grounds plane tech’s retaliation suit against FedEx
By Tricia Gorman, Managing Editor, Westlaw Journals

A former Federal Express maintenance technician cannot proceed with a state law claim that the company fired him for  
reporting plane repair problems because a claim under the federal aviation whistleblower law has already been dismissed,  
a California federal judge has ruled.

REUTERS/STRNew

The plaintiff notified his managers at FedEx that he was concerned about the effectiveness of some repairs being done to the planes, like 
the one shown here, and suggested a FAA inspection, the suit said.

Rodriguez v. Federal Express Corp., No. 15- 
cv-1109, 2016 WL 409662 (C.D. Cal. Feb. 2, 
2016).

U.S. District Judge Dean D. Pregerson of the 
Central District of California said Richard 
Rodriguez’s California Whistleblower 
Protection Act claim is the same as his 
federal claim under the so-called AIR 21 law. 
The U.S. Labor Department rejected the 
federal claim in 2013, he said.

According to the judge’s order, the California 
Supreme Court ruled in 2010 that a final 
decision on an AIR 21 administrative 
complaint denies the claimant the right to 
file a subsequent court action under state 
law. Murray v. Alaska Airlines, 50 Cal. 4th 860 
(Cal. 2010).

Rodriguez began working as an aviation 
maintenance technician for FedEx in May 
2011, his amended complaint said. He 
performed plane repairs and ensured that the 
repairs met federal and company standards.

In November 2011 Rodriguez notified his 
managers that he was concerned about the 
effectiveness of some repairs being done  
to the planes and suggested an inspection  
by the Federal Aviation Administration, the 
suit said.

Rodriguez alleged FedEx “was compromising 
safety for the sake of getting airplanes out 
fast.”

He refused to make the suspect repairs and 
told managers he did not want responsibility 
for work he thought failed to meet safety 
standards, the suit said.

Rodriguez said that after he voiced his 
concerns, his managers harassed him, 
gave him undesirable assignments and 
falsely accused him of insubordination. The 
company fired him Dec. 28, 2012, the suit 
said.

In March 2013, Rodriguez filed a complaint 
with the U.S. Occupational Safety and  
Health Administration, alleging that FedEx 
violated AIR 21 by firing him in retaliation 
for reporting the repair problems. The 
law, formally called the Wendell H. Ford 
Aviation Investment and Reform Act for the 
21st Century, 49 U.S.C.A. §  42121, protects 
employees who report air safety information 
to their employer or the government from 
retaliation.

Following an investigation, OSHA dismissed 
Rodriguez’s claim in July 2013, finding “no 
reasonable inference of nexus between 
complainant’s termination and protected 
activity.”

After a Labor Department administrative 
law judge rejected his appeal of the OSHA 
decision, Rodriguez filed suit in February 
2015.

The suit accused the company of violating 
the state Whistleblower Protection Act, Cal. 
Labor Code § 1102.5, which says an employer 
may not retaliate against an employee 
who reports a possible law violation or who 
refuses to perform tasks that could violate 
the law.

Judge Pregerson granted FedEx’s motion 
to dismiss the suit in June, but allowed 
Rodriguez to amend his complaint to provide 
additional details in support of his claim.

The judge has now granted the company’s 
motion to dismiss the amended complaint, 
agreeing with FedEx’s argument that the 
OSHA decision essentially barred Rodriguez 
from filing the suit.

Rodriguez’s amended complaint does 
not include any facts or claims that the 
administrative law judge has not already 
rejected, so he is “collaterally estopped 
from re-raising those issues here,” Judge 
Pregerson said.  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Order: 2016 WL 409662

The plaintiff alleged FedEx 
“was compromising safety 

for the sake of getting 
airplanes out fast.”
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INSURANCE

Insurers defeat aircraft owner’s coverage suit in Delaware
By Melissa J. Sachs, Esq., Senior Legal Writer, Westlaw Journals

Owners of an aircraft that crashed in the Democratic Republic of the Congo may not sue their insurers in Delaware 
while a similar suit is pending in Georgia, a judge in Wilmington has ruled.

“The critical fact left out of Lima Delta’s argument  
is the significant lapse in time between the filing  

of the Georgia action and the filing of the Delaware action,” 
Judge Jan R. Jurden wrote.

Lima Delta Co. et al. v. Global Aerospace 
Inc. et al., C.A. No. N14C-02-101, 2016 WL 
691965 (Del. Super. Ct. Feb. 19, 2016).

Lima Delta Co. and the aircraft’s other 
owners filed their bad-faith suit 21 months 
after aviation insurer Global Aerospace Inc. 
filed a “functionally identical” suit in Georgia, 
the Delaware Superior Court opinion said.

Lima Delta had argued the insurer’s lawsuit 
was an “anticipatory, defensive filing,”  
but Delaware Superior Court Judge Jan R. 
Jurden disagreed, giving deference to the 
first-filed Georgia action, which involved 
essentially the same parties and claims.

“The critical fact left out of Lima Delta’s 
argument is the significant lapse in time 
between the filing of the Georgia action and 
the filing of the Delaware action,” she wrote.

Judge Jurden opted to dismiss rather 
than stay the later-filed Delaware lawsuit 
because allowing the two actions to proceed 
simultaneously could result in inconsistent 
and conflicting rulings, she said.

CRASH IN DRC

According to the opinion, Lima Delta was the 
registered U.S. owner of a Gulfstream G-IV 
aircraft, which it held as the “owner trustee” 
for Societe Commerciale et Industrielle 
Katangaise.

Societe Commerciale used the Gulfstream 
in the Democratic Republic of the Congo, or 
DRC. It hired Trident Aviation Services LLC to 
manage the aircraft, flight crews, scheduling 
and maintenance, the opinion said.

Lima Delta’s broker, Wells Fargo Insurance 
Services USA Inc., worked with Global 
Aerospace to obtain a “broad horizon” 
aviation policy from a pool of five insurers to 
cover the aircraft, the opinion said.

In February 2012 the aircraft touched down 
at Bukavu Kavumu Airport in the DRC when 
its brakes malfunctioned and it crashed into 
a ravine, the opinion said.

Based on the crash, Global Aerospace opened 
an investigation, but never denied coverage 
for the claim, Judge Jurden’s opinion said.

Instead, the insurer allegedly learned about 
various misrepresentations or omissions 
from the policyholders during the contract 
negotiation process.

According to the complaint that Global 
Aerospace filed in Georgia’s Fulton County 
Superior Court, the insurers understood Lima 
Delta would operate the aircraft in Delaware 
for industrial aid uses. Global Aerospace Inc. v. 
Lima Delta Co. et al., No. 2012-cv-14772, 
complaint filed, 2012 WL 10688724 (Ga. 
Super. Ct., Fulton Cty. May 7, 2012).

Based on this understanding, the policy 
came with a $250 million aggregate limit for 
a premium of about $27,000, the suit said.

It was only after the crash — which totaled the 
plane, killed two pilots and one passenger, 
and injured several others — that the insurers 
learned the plane actually operated in the 
DRC, the suit said.

Lima Delta’s material misrepresentations 
or omissions about where the plane would 
operate warranted equitable rescission of the 
policy, the suit said.

Insurance agents and brokers as well as 
aircraft owners know the DRC is one of the 
most dangerous countries in the world 
regarding aviation safety, the complaint 
added.

The policy also provided no coverage for the 
crash because it required the pilots to fly with 
certain minimum credentials, which one of 
them did not meet, the suit alleged.

Almost two years later, Lima Delta, Societe 
Commerciale and Trident filed their 

complaint Feb. 11, 2014, against Global 
Aerospace, Wells Fargo and the pool of five 
insurers in Delaware, Judge Jurden’s opinion 
said.

The insurers asked Judge Jurden to dismiss 
the later-filed action and separately. Wells 
Fargo, which was not a party to the Georgia 

action, asked the judge to dismiss it from the 
case, her opinion said.

Meanwhile, briefing and discovery continued 
in Georgia. Then, the Georgia Superior 
Court granted the insurers’ summary 
judgment motion rescinding the policy 
and, alternatively, finding no coverage 
for the crash because of the policy’s pilot 
qualifications requirement.

After this, Wells Fargo submitted a motion 
to stay the Delaware action in lieu of its 
dismissal motion.

Judge Jurden granted the insurers’ motion to 
dismiss the Delaware suit and Wells Fargo’s 
motion to stay the action while the Georgia 
case continues, finding it in the interests of 
comity and to prevent conflicting rulings.  WJ

Attorneys:
Plaintiffs: John S. Spadaro, John Sheehan 
Spadaro LLC, Smyrna, DE; Gary L. Evans,  
Coats & Evans, The Woodlands, TX

Defendant (Wells Fargo): Elizabeth A. Sloan, 
Ballard Spahr LLP, Wilmington, DE; Nancy H.  
Baughan, Parker Hudson Rainer & Dobbs, 
Atlanta, GA

Defendant (Mitsui): Timothy J. Houseal, Young 
Conaway Stargatt & Taylor, Wilmington, DE

Defendants (Global Aerospace et al.): Seth A. 
Niederman, Fox Rothschild LLP, Wilmington, DE; 
Jeffrey W. Moryan, Connell Foley LLP, Roseland, NJ

Related Court Document: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 691965

See Document Section C (P. 39) for the opinion.
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PRODUCT LIABILITY/INSURANCE

Engine defects caused fatal medical helicopter crash, suit says
Defects allowed ice-melt water to disrupt a medical helicopter’s engine power, causing a crash that killed two people 
and destroyed the aircraft, the helicopter’s owner and insurer have alleged in a Washington federal court suit.

 Courtesy of NTSB

The suit involves a helicopter that crashed in a parking lot in Oklahoma City and caught fire, killing 
two occupants. The copter’s wreckage is shown here.

EagleMed LLC et al. v. Soloy LLC, No. 16-cv-5136, complaint filed 
(W.D. Wash., Tacoma Feb. 22, 2016).

According to the complaint, filed in U.S. District Court for the 
Western District of Washington by EagleMed LLC and insurer Starr  
Indemnity & Liability Co., the air inlets of Soloy LLC’s engine conversion 
package were defectively designed and manufactured so as to allow 
water to accumulate and enter the engine of the Eurocopter AS 350 B2.  
Soloy is based in Olympia, Washington.

“When the engine ingested the water, the engine experienced a loss  
of power sufficient to cause the crash,” the suit says.

According to the plaintiffs, pilot Mark Montgomery was unaware of 
the defects during the February 2013 flight to pick up a patient from 
Watonga Municipal Hospital in Watonga, Oklahoma.

The helicopter crashed in a retirement home parking lot in Oklahoma 
City and caught fire, killing Montgomery and flight nurse Christopher 

Denning, the suit says. Flight paramedic Billy Wynn was severely 
injured but survived the crash, the complaint says.

According to the National Transportation Safety Board’s accident 
report, ice infiltration during takeoff caused the engine power loss.

“When the engine ingested the water,  
the engine experienced a loss of power 

sufficient to cause the crash,” the suit says.

The lack of an installed engine air inlet cover, which may have allowed 
precipitation to accumulate near the engine air intake; exposure  
to precipitation and freezing temperatures; and the pilot’s failure to 
detect ice accumulation in the air inlet contributed to the crash, the 
NTSB said.

The plaintiffs say Soloy’s engine did not have a heated anti-ice system 
and the design of the air intakes and blanking plate, which covers an 
instrument panel, made it difficult for a pilot to inspect the system.

The engine was not tested for water ingestion, the suit says, and Soloy 
failed to warn EagleMed of potential engine failure.

The plaintiffs say they paid $350,000 in benefits to Wynn and the 
families of Montgomery and Denning.

Starr says it additionally paid EagleMed $1.95 million for the loss of the 
helicopter.

According to EagleMed, it lost nearly $65,000 in medical equipment 
on board and paid a $50,000 deductible.

The plaintiffs seek compensation for their monetary damages, along 
with costs and attorney fees.  WJ

Attorney:
Plaintiffs: T. Jeffrey Keane, Keane Law Office, Seattle, WA

Related Court Document: 
Complaint: 2016 WL 699688
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LEGISLATION

U.S. House Republicans say FAA bill is delayed, not dead
(Reuters) – U.S. House Republicans on Feb. 26 insisted that a six-year bill to fund the Federal Aviation Administration 
and privatize U.S. air traffic control had not been killed despite a decision to move forward instead with a short-term 
funding measure.

The legislation was approved by the 
House Transportation and Infrastructure 
Committee on Feb. 11 and sent to the floor for 
a vote by the full House. But it encountered 
intensifying opposition from Democrats.

“It has not been scrapped,” a senior 
Republican aide said. “We’ll consider a 
short-term extension while the committee 
continues to work on their product.”

A spokesman for House Transportation 
Chairman Bill Shuster, a Pennsylvania 
Republican, said the panel still intends to 

pass the multi-year bill that would transform 
the air traffic control system. Republicans 
contend that only privatization can reduce 

flight delays and upgrade the FAA system’s 
decades-old technology.

“This is an ongoing process, and we will 
continue working to educate members 
and address questions they have about the 

bill. The need for an extension was not a 
surprise,” Shuster said in a statement issued 
by his office.

Republicans contend that only privatization can reduce flight 
delays and upgrade the FAA system’s decades-old technology.

Details of the short-term funding measure 
are still being discussed. The current funding 
arrangement expires March 31.  WJ

(Reporting by David Morgan)

The WESTLAW JOURNALS blog is your source for the latest developments 
in practice areas like  
business and finance,  
IP and technology,  
product liability, and  
environmental law.  
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Air Force loses patent battle over plane insulation
By Patrick H.J. Hughes, Managing Editor, Westlaw Daily Briefing

The U.S. Air Force must go back to fighting against an infringement suit over its use of patented insulation materials in 
fighter planes after the top patent appeals panel reversed a lower court ruling invalidating the patent.

Zoltek Corp. v. United States, No. 14-5082, 
2016 WL 683819 (Fed. Cir. Feb. 19, 2016).

Zoltek Corp. convinced the U.S. Court of 
Appeals for the Federal Circuit that the 
U.S. government failed to show the method 
patent for producing carbon fiber sheets 
with “pre-selected desired surface electrical 
resistance” was invalid.

It reversed and remanded the case to the 
U.S. Court of Federal Claims for further 
proceedings. 

Zoltek is a St. Louis-based maker of carbon-
fiber products that owns U.S. Patent Reissue 
No. RE34,162, covering a “controlled surface 
electrical resistance carbon fiber sheet 
product.”

The ‘162 patent is a reissue of U.S. Patent 
No. 4,728,395, which the Patent and 
Trademark Office granted in 1988 to Zoltek’s 
predecessor.

Zoltek sued the federal government in 1996 
in the U.S Court of Federal Claims, saying 
the Air Force infringed the ‘162 patent  
when it created the B-2 Bomber and F-22 
Fighter jets.

The Air Force used the patent to create plane 
insulation with certain pre-selected qualities, 
according to the complaint.

After several appeals and remands, the 
trial court separated the trials for invalidity 
and infringement, with infringement not yet 
decided.

During a three-day trial on validity, the 
government argued the ‘162 patent was 
invalid on grounds of obviousness and 
inadequate written description pursuant 
to Sections 103 and 112 of the Patent Act,  
35 U.S.C.A. §§ 103 and 112.

In March 2014, Claims Court Judge Edward J.  
Damich said the reissued patent’s 
modifications to prior art involving treating 
carbonized fibers with heat would have been 
obvious to one of ordinary skill in the art. 
Zoltek Corp. v. United States, No. 96-166-C, 
2014 WL 1279152 (Fed. Cl. Mar. 31, 2014).

In addition, the judge found the specifications 
in the reissue exceeded the original patent’s 
written description, which also rendered the 
patent invalid.

Zoltek appealed the invalidity rulings and 
said the case was improperly bifurcated.

INVALIDITY RULINGS OVERTURNED

The three-judge Federal Circuit panel said 
the circumstances of the case, including 
the government’s official invoking of a  
state secret privilege, warranted bifurcation.

However, the panel disagreed with the Judge 
Damich’s obviousness ruling, citing problems 
with the testimony of the government’s 
expert witness.

The witness conceded the lack of complete 
information in the prior art caused errors 
in his calculations, preventing him from 
duplicating the patented discovery, a 
situation the panel considered “powerful 
evidence of non-obviousness.”

The panel also disagreed with Judge 
Damich’s reason for finding the ‘162 patent 
invalid for lack of written description.

The inventor merely replaced a preparatory 
step with a requirement to start with a pre-
made product — in this case “previously 
oxidized and stabilized fiber” — a substitution 
that meets the written description 
requirement, the panel said.  WJ

Attorneys:
Plaintiff-appellant: Dean A. Monco, Wood, 
Phillips, Katz, Clark & Mortimer, Chicago, IL; 
John S. Mortimer and Meredith Martin Addy, 
Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP, Chicago, IL

Defendant-appellee: Gary Lee Hausken, David M. 
Ruddy, Joyce R. Brands and John Fargo, Justice 
Department, Washington, DC

Related Court Documents: 
Opinion: 2016 WL 683819 
Appellee brief: 2014 WL 4988134 
Appellant brief: 2014 WL 3421180
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SECURITIES

Boeing hit with investor suit over SEC accounting probe
By Nicole Banas, Senior Content Writer, Westlaw Daily Briefing

Boeing Co. painted a rosy picture of financial health for its commercial jetliner business based on an accounting  
method currently being questioned by the Securities and Exchange Commission, according to an investor fraud suit 
filed in Chicago federal court.

SEC had launched an investigation of the 
company in response to a whistleblower 
complaint.

The SEC probe allegedly focuses on whether 
Boeing made overly optimistic sales forecasts 
in financial statements and whether its 
estimates of declining production costs are 
accurate.

Boeing’s shares, which reached a class-
period high of $158 each in February 2015, 
began a slide in December. They were trading 
Feb. 10 around $116 each and closed Feb. 11 
below $108.50. The share price has since 
rebounded and is currently around $120.

SECURITIES FRAUD CLAIMS

The defendants allegedly made misleading 
statements to investors in violation of the 
anti-fraud provision of Section 10(b) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 
§ 78j(b).

The Boeing executives are additionally liable 
as control persons under Section 20(a) of 
the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.A. §  78t(a), the 
complaint says.  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Complaint: 2016 WL 704769

 REUTERS/Vivek Prakash

The complaint says Boeing’s share price fell almost  
7 percent on news the SEC is investigating the aircraft  

builder’s accounting for the production costs of its  
787 Dreamliner and 747 jumbo aircraft.

Bisht v. Boeing Co. et al., No. 16-cv-2454, 
complaint filed (N.D. Ill. Feb. 22, 2016).

The proposed class-action complaint says 
Boeing’s share price fell Feb. 11 almost  
7 percent, or about $8, on news the SEC is 
investigating the aircraft builder’s accounting 
for the production costs of its 787 Dreamliner 
and 747 jumbo aircraft.

Boeing, CEO Dennis Muilenburg and Chief 
Financial Officer Gregory Smith allegedly 
violated federal securities law by failing to tell 
investors that they had improperly recorded 
costs and expected sales associated with the 
commercial jets.

Chicago-based Boeing is a global manufacturer 
of commercial jetliners, military aircraft, and 
defense, space and security systems.

accounting and said the method requires 
“reasonably dependable” estimates of the 
revenue and costs associated with existing 
and anticipated contracts.

The company reported that its Dreamliner 
program had a “low single digit” profit 
margin and that its 747 program was in a 
“reach-forward loss position,” the complaint 
says.

Boeing’s year-end filings from 2012 through 
2015 cautioned that the company could be 
required to record additional reach-forward 
losses should it be unable to mitigate risks 
associated with the Dreamliner and 747 
programs, according to the suit.

SEC PROBE REVEALED?

The complaint says the truth about Boeing’s 
accounting practices started to emerge Feb. 
11, when Bloomberg News reported that the 

The suit, filed in the U.S. District Court for 
the Northern District of Illinois by Boeing 
shareholder Tribhuwan Bisht, seeks 
compensation for investors who bought 
Boeing shares during a nearly four-year 
period ending Feb. 11.

‘PROGRAM’ ACCOUNTING

According to the complaint, Boeing’s 
commercial airplanes segment since 2003 
has used the “program accounting” method 
in which the company divides the cost of 
producing a unit across its entire jetliner 
program.

The method allows Boeing to defer 
production costs for a specific jet over the 
course of a program that can last decades, 
the suit says.

Boeing’s 2011 annual report to the SEC 
allegedly disclosed its use of program 
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BANKRUPTCY

Republic Air files for bankruptcy protection,  
blames pilot shortage
(Reuters) – Regional carrier Republic Airways Holdings Inc. filed for Chapter 11  
bankruptcy protection Feb. 25, blaming several quarters of falling revenue  
after having to ground aircraft amid a pilot shortage.

In re Republic Airways Holdings Inc.,  
No. 16-10429, petition filed (Bankr. S.D.N.Y. 
Feb. 25, 2016).

The Indianapolis-based short-haul carrier, 
which feeds flights to American Airlines 
Group Inc., Delta Air Lines Inc. and United 
Continental Holdings Inc. brands, listed 
assets of $3.6 billion and $3 billion of 
liabilities, court documents showed.

Republic said the bankruptcy process would 
allow it to continue normal business while 
restructuring its finances and contracts.

“We worked hard to avoid this step,” 
Republic Chairman Bryan Bedford said in a 
statement but added that the restructuring 
would “restore our airline and take it to new 
heights.”

Republic offers approximately 1,000 daily 
flights to more than 100 cities in the United 
States, Canada, the Caribbean and the 
Bahamas.

It is among of handful of regional airlines 
that have filed for bankruptcy since American 
Airlines filed in 2011.

United said in a statement Feb. 25 that it 
does not expect to change its flight schedules 
because of the bankruptcy. American said it is 
too early to assess an impact on scheduling, 
and Delta did not immediately return a 
request for comment.

“It’s not going to affect the flying public at 
all,” aviation consultant Michael Boyd said. 
“But it does recognize that that sector of the 
industry … is atrophying.”

“We maintain that within three years, most 
50-seat jets will be parked,” he said of the 
small jets flown by regional airlines.

United has said it aims to cut the number 
of 50-seat planes flown under its United 
Express brand in half by 2019, reducing  
its reliance on contractors, improving its 
fuel-burn per passenger and giving it space 
for multiple cabin classes and the chance  
to up-sell customers.

“We maintain that  
within three years, most 

50-seat jets will be parked,” 
aviation consultant  
Michael Boyd said.

Republic said it has sufficient assets and 
liquidity to meet its working capital and 
operating expenses during the restructuring 
process and will continue to deliver safe 
services and pay its employees, providers  
and vendors.

The carrier, with a staff of about 6,000, 
will also continue to honor its collective 
bargaining agreements with its unions, it 
said.

The company’s major investors include  
Solus Alternative Asset Management, 
BlackRock Inc., Man Group Plc, Dimensional 
Fund Advisors, Axar Capital Management 
and Manning & Napier Advisors, according to 
court documents.  WJ

(Reporting by Tom Hals in Wilmington, 
Delaware, and Jeffrey Dastin in New York)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Air Methods stands firm against activist  
investor’s calls for board change
By Suzanne Northington, Contributor, Westlaw Daily Briefing

Activist hedge fund Voce Capital Management LLC is stepping up its efforts for  
board change at emergency medical services helicopter operator Air Methods  
Corp. by nominating two directors and proposing to eliminate the company’s  
staggered board structure.

San Francisco-based Voce disclosed 
its intent to nominate two directors for 
election to Air Methods’ board in a Feb. 22 
Schedule 14A filing with the Securities and  
Exchange Commission, saying only 
a change at the top can reverse the 
company’s underperformance and director 
entrenchment.

Air Methods’ shares are worth the same 
amount today as they were in 2012 and 
have underperformed the Russell 2000  
and Standard & Poor 500 indices, Voce 
said in a Feb. 19 letter to the board that  
was attached as an exhibit to the filing.

More pointedly, the letter alleged that 
the company’s board is not aligned with 
shareholders’ interests. “Air Methods’ 
corporate governance machinery smacks of 
entrenchment,” according to Voce.

As an example, the hedge fund questioned 
the integrity of the company’s strategic 
review process in the context of recent stock 
sales by directors.

Over the last decade, Air Methods’ current 
independent directors sold 1.4 million shares 
while purchasing only 11,000 shares, Voce 
said.

In contrast, Voce said its board nominees  
are stockholders who purchased Air  
Methods’ shares very recently. Those 
nominees are Richard G. D’Auteuil, a director 
at Columbia Threadneedle Investments, 
and Joseph E. Whitters, executive partner of 
investment firm Frazier Healthcare Partners.

Voce noted that both candidates would  
be independent directors. Neither candidate 
will receive any compensation from Voce, 
nor do they have any affiliations with it, the 
hedge fund said.

PROPOSAL TO ELIMINATE 
STAGGERED BOARD

Voce also submitted a resolution calling 
for the repeal of Air Methods’ staggered 
board. The board structure “smacks of 
entrenchment,” the hedge fund said.

Only three of the company’s directors are 
up for election at this year’s annual meeting 
because Air Methods’ bylaws provide for  
a staggered board with three-year terms. 
“The overwhelming majority of companies  
in the S&P 500 do not have staggered  
boards (436 out of 500),” according to Voce.

‘HIGHLY INDEPENDENT’ BOARD

In a public response to Voce’s nominations, 
Air Methods countered that 10 of its 11 
directors are independent, including its most 
recently appointed director.

The company noted that its board of directors 
is “highly independent and deeply engaged 
with management to ensure its strategic 
plan is fully aligned with the best interest of 
all shareholders.”

The Colorado company also said it is currently 
executing on several strategic initiatives, 
including building long-term relationships 
with hospitals and rejuvenating its line of 
aircraft fleet.

Air Methods has significantly outperformed 
the Standard & Poor’s Health Care Services 
Select Industry Index over the past six 
months, the company said. According to 
the company, its stock price has declined, 
by 4 percent while the index declined by  
24 percent over the same period.

HISTORY OF CLASHES

Voce previously urged Air Methods to take 
steps to increase shareholder value. In a 
September 2015 letter to the board, Voce 
recommended that Air Methods consider a 
sale to a private equity firm.

Air Methods’ value to a private purchaser 
could exceed the current trading price for its 
stock by more than 50 percent, Voce said at 
the time.

A month later, the hedge fund sent another 
letter complaining about the company’s 
adoption of staggered three-year board 
terms, a practice that inhibited shareholders 
from calling special meetings or removing 
directors.

Air Methods followed up in November 2015 
by engaging with investment bankers, 
ostensibly to seek a potential sale or other 
restructuring.  WJ

“Air Methods’ corporate 
governance machinery 

smacks of entrenchment,” 
according to shareholder 

Voce Voce Capital 
Management.
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MERGERS & ACQUISITIONS

United Tech rejects Honeywell’s $90.7 billion offer
(Reuters) – U.S. industrial conglomerate United Technologies Corp. on Feb. 26 rejected a $90.7 billion offer by rival 
aerospace supplier Honeywell International Inc., saying that pursuing a merger would be “irresponsible” toward its 
shareholders.

“We concluded that a combination would  
be blocked outright or, even if it were  
possible to complete a transaction, the 
regulatory delay, required divestitures,  
and customer concerns and concessions 
would ultimately destroy shareholder 
value far beyond any synergies,” United 
Technologies said in a regulatory filing.

“It would be irresponsible for UTC to move 
forward with the proposed combination,”  
it said.

Honeywell said earlier Feb. 26 it has offered 
to buy United Technologies Corp. for about 
$90.7 billion, putting pressure on the 
reluctant aerospace supplier to come to the 
negotiating table.

A combined company would have almost 
$100 billion in annual sales, and double-
digit earnings growth after they slash costs, 
according to a presentation by Honeywell 
CEO David Cote to United Tech’s top 
executives made public Feb. 26.

United Tech shares, part of the Dow Jones 
industrial average, turned lower in afternoon 
trading, down 0.8 percent to $97.36. That  
is well below Honeywell’s $108-per-share 
offer, suggesting Wall Street, like United 
Tech, was skeptical about the combination.

United Tech is the parent of Otis elevators, 
Carrier air conditioners and Pratt &  
Whitney jet engines, while Honeywell 
makes thermostats, auto turbochargers and 
airplane cockpit electronics.

A merger could either be blocked outright or 
made conditional on significant divestitures 
after a lengthy and disruptive review that 
would destroy shareholder value, United 
Tech has said.

Honeywell, however, said potential regulatory 
issues would be “easily resolved.”

In its presentation, Honeywell said a deal  
with United Tech would save $3.5 billion 

“It just cannot happen,” United Technologies Corp.  
CEO Greg Hayes said of a merger with Honeywell International 

Inc. “There’s just no way to get it done.”

Areas of overlap between the companies 
include small aircraft engines, airplane 
power units and environmental systems 
as well as wheels and brakes, CRT Capital 
analyst Peter Arment said in a note to clients.

Honeywell would likely have to divest many 
assets and raise its offer before a deal was 
done, Arment added. U.S. and European 
regulatory scrutiny would push the deal’s 
completion well into 2017.

by cutting spending on raw materials, 
consolidating real estate and in other 
ways. Under the offer, Cote would lead the 
combined company.

A merger would create a behemoth 
responsible for much of the equipment 
on commercial airliners, and would likely 
draw opposition from plane makers such as  
Airbus and Boeing Co. as well as the 
Pentagon.

The combined company would generate 
about 28 percent of sales from commercial 
aerospace customers, and 13 percent from 
the defense and space sector, according to 
Honeywell’s presentation.

United Tech’s mix of business is currently 
more heavily weighed toward aerospace than 
Honeywell’s.  WJ

(Reporting by Ankit Ajmera)

Honeywell said its offer includes $42.63 in 
cash and 0.614 of its shares for each United 
Tech share. The proposal represents a  
22 percent premium to United Tech’s  
closing price Feb. 19, the last trading day 
before the talks were made public. 

Honeywell shares fell 0.5 percent at $103.70.

The companies said Feb. 22 they had 
held merger talks but did not offer details. 
United Tech had said a deal would “face 
insurmountable regulatory obstacles.”

“It just cannot happen,” United Tech CEO 
Greg Hayes said on CNBC television Feb. 23. 
“There’s just no way to get it done.”

Hayes added that when United Tech 
announced it was buying aircraft components 
maker Goodrich in 2011, customers pushed 
back, fearing the deal would concentrate too 
much pricing power in one supplier.
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onboard. The plane was traveling from 
Amsterdam to Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

The families’ lawsuit, filed last July, had 
accused Malaysia Air of allowing the plane to 
enter an internationally recognized conflict 
zone in the airspace above eastern Ukraine.

With the airline out of the case, the plaintiffs 
supplemented their claims against the rebel 
leader, Igor Girkin, in an amended complaint 
filed Feb. 18.

The plaintiffs say Girkin — the commander 
in chief of the self-styled Donetsk People’s 
Republic, or DNR — had threatened to shoot 
down any aircraft flying over that region.

Girkin, who is also known as Igor Strelkov, 
is on a U.S. government sanctions list for 
specially designated nationals and blocked 
persons.

The European Union, Canada, Switzerland 
and New Zealand also identify Girkin as an 
intelligence director of the Armed Forces of 
the Russian Federation and list him on their 
sanctions lists, the amended complaint says.

Sometime before the crash of Flight 17, 
individuals acting under Girkin’s command 
transported one or more missile units from 
Russia to Ukraine, according to the plaintiffs.

DNR members, allegedly acting with 
authority of the Russian government, took 
responsibility for shooting down the plane, 
the amended complaint says.

Girkin also ordered those under his command 
to pick up any crash victims’ possessions and 
personal effects found at the crash scene and 
take them to DNR headquarters, according 
to the amended suit.

The amended complaint accuses Girkin of 
violating the Torture Victim Protection Act, 
28 U.S.C.A. § 1350.

The TVPA allows the representatives of 
persons deliberately killed by foreign officials 
— individuals acting under a foreign nation’s 
actual or apparent authority — to bring a 
wrongful-death action in the United States 
if there was no foreign judgment or law 
authorizing the killing. 

The law refers to these types of deaths as 
“extrajudicial killings.”

Girkin’s actions in ordering, aiding, abetting 
or conspiring to shoot down Malaysia Airlines 
Flight 17 qualifies as an extrajudicial killing 
because he was acting under authority from 
Russia or the DNR, the plaintiff say.

Malaysia Air
CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

Ukrainian rebel leader on U.S. soil?

“We dismissed Malaysia Air as part of confidential settlement 
discussions with its insurers. We would think that, if [Igor] Girkin 
has no responsibility, he would want to appear and contest the 
allegations in our complaint. However, we believe he will not 
appear. If he does not appear, we plan to seek a default judgment 
against him.”

—Floyd A. Wisner, plaintiffs’ attorney 

“The deadly use of force against a civilian 
airliner is expressly forbidden in international 
law under numerous international treaties,” 
the amended suit says.

The plaintiffs seek at least $50 million 
for each of the victims they represent as 
compensatory and punitive damages, as well 
as costs.

“Plaintiffs are unable to exhaust any local 
remedies which might be available to 
them in that part of the Ukraine where this 
extrajudicial killing occurred, or indeed 
Russia, as such efforts would be futile and, 
in addition, would subject plaintiffs to fear of 
reprisals,” the amended complaint says.   WJ

Attorney:
Plaintiffs: Floyd A. Wisner, Wisner Law Firm, 
Geneva, IL

Related Court Document: 
Amended complaint: 2016 WL 702397

See Document Section A (P. 17) for the amended 
complaint.
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United Airlines
CONTINUED FROM PAGE 1

ON-THE-JOB INJURIES

Gutierrez filed suit in 2014 under California’s 
Fair Employment and Housing Act,  
Cal. Gov’t Code § 12940, seeking unspecified 
damages for lost wages and emotional 
distress.

According to the complaint, Gutierrez has 
worked for United since 1994 when he was 
hired part-time. He became a full-time 
ramp service employee in 1995 and has 
also worked as an aircraft mechanic. As a 
ramp worker, his duties included lifting and  
moving luggage.

Gutierrez injured his right hip, foot, back 
and shoulder at work Jan. 14, 2009, and 
was placed on disability, where he remains,  
the suit says. As a result of his injuries, 
Gutierrez says, he is unable to bend or 
stoop and for a time could not lift more than  
10 pounds.

According to the suit, Gutierrez asked United 
for reasonable accommodations “numerous 
times” so he could return to work, but  
the airline refused to accommodate him or 
help him find an appropriate alternate job.

United has also refused to consider Gutierrez 
for several open mechanic positions, the suit 
says.

The airline argued in its motion for summary 
judgment that it had offered Gutierrez some 
light-duty positions that he refused.

Gutierrez alleges United has violated the 
state’s employment law by discriminating 
against him because of his disability. He 
says the airline has also refused to consider 
him for other positions in retaliation for his 
seeking an accommodation even though the 
company has accommodated other disabled 
employees.

The state’s employment discrimination 
law requires the airline to engage with 
an employee who seeks accommodation 
to determine if an appropriate position is 
available, the suit says.

United, however, has failed to make a good-
faith effort to work with Gutierrez, the suit 
says.

FACT DISPUTES PRECLUDE 
SUMMARY JUDGMENT

United argued in its motion for summary 
judgment that Gutierrez failed to show that 
the airline discriminated against him. He 
was unable to fulfill the requirements of  
the mechanic positions for which he had 
applied, it said.

The airline also said that Gutierrez could 
not claim that he suffered an adverse 
employment action, because he had been 
offered but refused the light-duty jobs and 
never resigned or was terminated.

There is some dispute over whether  
Gutierrez can perform the mechanic duties 
and if he was subject to an adverse action  
by United, Judge Spero said.

Given that Gutierrez has experience as 
a mechanic, evidence suggests that the 
airline’s non-discriminatory reasons for 
denying Gutierrez’s applications for the 
position are simply pretext, he said.

“There is specific and substantial evidence 
in the record that the reason United now 
offers for its failure to place Gutierrez in 
a mechanic’s position — that he was not 
qualified for those positions — is not worthy 
of credence,” the judge said.

The judge also rejected United’s argument 
that the fact that two of the positions 
Gutierrez applied for were later eliminated 
showed that the airline had no discriminatory 
intent. 

“There is no evidence in the record as to why 
these positions were canceled or even who 
made the decision to cancel them,” Judge 
Spero said.

United argued that Gutierrez’s claim that the 
airline failed to accommodate his disability 
should fail because it did accommodate  
him by allowing him to extend his leave for 
six years.

But Judge Spero said there are facts in 
dispute over whether United met the three 
requirements for summary judgment on the 
claim: that the airline made a reasonable 
offer that was refused, that no vacant 
position exists for which Gutierrez is qualified 
and that United attempted to reasonably 
accommodate Gutierrez but he failed to 
engage in the process.

The judge also denied summary judgment to 
United on Gutierrez’s claims for retaliation, 
failure to prevent discrimination and 
wrongful termination.

NO PUNITIVE DAMAGES 

Judge Spero rejected Gutierrez’s request 
for punitive damages and granted United 
summary judgment on that issue.

Gutierrez had argued that he was due 
punitive damages because the airline’s 
accommodation policy was oppressive and 
malicious.

“The court finds no authority … suggesting 
that a facially neutral policy requiring 
disabled employees to compete with non-
disabled employees for open positions is  
the sort of conduct that would be sufficient  
to reflect malice, oppression or fraud such 
that punitive damages would be available 
under California law,” Judge Spero said.  WJ

Related Court Document: 
Order: 2016 WL 612937

See Document Section B (P. 22) for the order.
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NEWS IN BRIEF

SCULPTURE MISHANDLED DURING SHIPPING, INSURER SAYS

A sculpture insured by Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s London was damaged while American 
Airlines and other companies transported it from France to New York, the insurer has alleged 
in a complaint filed in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of New York. Lloyd’s  
client Marc Selwyn Fine Art Inc. was consigned Lucio Fontana’s “Concetto Spaziale” for 
$196,000, the complaint says. According to the suit, defendant Societe Nouvelle Cornu 
Emballeur packed the art in February 2015, and each of the following defendants handled the 
sculpture on its journey to the Armory Art Fair on Long Island, New York, where it was found 
damaged: World Freight, ARC Transport, Kraft E.L.S. AG, CDG Handing, American Airlines 
Cargo, MainFreight Inc. and Elite Systematic Arts Inc. American Airlines violated the Montreal 
Convention, which governs liability for the handling of cargo on international flights, the insurer 
says, and the other defendants were negligent and breached their contracts. The insurer seeks 
recovery for $104,250 it paid to Marc Selwyn to cover a portion of the sculpture’s damage and 
nearly $12,000 in other damages and costs. 

Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s London subscribing to policy No. B1161A143678 v. Elite 
Systematic Arts Inc., No. 16-cv-734, complaint filed (E.D.N.Y. Feb. 11, 2016).

Related Court Document: 
Complaint: 2016 WL 556637

UN AGENCY PROHIBITS LITHIUM-ION BATTERIES AS CARGO ON PASSENGER 
PLANES

The United Nations’ International Civil Aviation Organization adopted a safety measure Feb. 22 
banning lithium-ion batteries in the cargo holds of passenger aircraft. The ICAO is a specialized 
U.N. agency tasked with maintaining international aviation standards. The measure becomes 
effective April 1 and does not pertain to lithium-ion batteries found in passengers’ and crew 
members’ personal electronic devices, the ICAO’s statement says. According to a Feb. 23 
CNN report, the ICAO does not have the authority to enforce the safety measure because that  
falls to aviation regulators in individual countries. CNN said most U.S. airlines already have a 
similar ban on the batteries, which are used in mobile devices and electronic cigarettes. 

LOCKHEED UNIT TO WORK ON AIRCRAFT FOR GREEK GOVERNMENT

Lockheed Martin Aeronautics in Marietta, Georgia, will modernize five P-3B surveillance 
aircraft for the government of Greece under a contract recently awarded by the U.S. Navy  
with a maximum value of $142 million, the Defense Department said in a Feb. 11 statement. 
The company, which manufactures the P-3 series of aircraft, will perform the work at facilities 
in Greece and in the United States. The Navy awarded the contract to Lockheed pursuant to  
the Foreign Military Sales Program. Under the program, the United States buys goods and 
services from domestic contractors and sells them to friendly foreign nations.
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